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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN
SOUTHERN DIVISION

DEREK RYNBERG and
WALTER L. PARTRIDGE,
On Behalf of Themselves
and All Others Similarly Situated,
Hon.
Plaintiff,
Case No.

PROPOSED CLASS ACTION
V.

CAVALRY SPV I, LLC,
CAVALRY PORTFOLIO SERVICES, LLC
and WEBER & OLCESE, P.L.C.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

NOW COMES Plaintiffs, DEREK RYNBERG and WALTER L. PARTRIDGE
(hereinafter “Plaintiff” or “Plaintiffs”) by and through counsel, The Law Offices of Brian Parker,
PC and The Law Offices of Nicholas A. Reyna and bring this action against the above listed
Defendants, CAVALRY SPV I, LLC (“Cavalry” or “Defendants”), CAVALRY
PORTFOLIO SERVICES, LLC (“CPS” or “Defendants”) and WEBER & OLCESE,

P.L.C. (“Weber” or “Defendants™) on the grounds set forth herein:

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT OUTLINING DEFENDANTS’ “AFFIDAVIT

ROBO-NOTARIZING” COLLECTION PLAN AND SCHEME

1.
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Plaintiff brings this action for damages and injunctive relief based upon the Defendants’
violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. and The

Regulation of Collection Practices Act (RCPA), codified at MCL 445.251 et seq.

2.

In Michigan, a collection lawsuit served with an affidavit is prima facie evidence of

indebtedness:
600.2145 Open account or account stated; proof, counterclaim.
Sec. 2145.
In all actions brought in any of the courts of this state, to recover the amount due on an open
account or upon an account stated, if the plaintiff or someone in his behalf makes an affidavit of
the amount due, as near as he can estimate the same, over and above all legal counterclaims and
annexes thereto a copy of said account, and cause a copy of said affidavit and account to be
served upon the defendant, with a copy of the complaint filed in the cause or with the process by
which such action is commenced, such affidavit shall be deemed prima facie evidence of such
indebtedness, unless the defendant with his answer, by himself or agent, makes an affidavit and
serves a copy thereof on the plaintiff or his attorney, denying the same.

3.

In a state-wide scheme designed to eliminate the “Burden” in the Burden of Proof and
deceive Michigan residents into paying a debt where Defendants lack proof of ownership of the
debt while eliminating the consumer’s legal defenses, members of the proposed classes are being
sued by Defendants with falsely verified documents to obtain false judgements based upon false
lawsuits and affidavits that have been signed by “robo-notarized” notaries like Dawn M. Fanning
to create a material and false burden on Michigan debtors to come up with their own Affidavit in
defense and create a large burden to respond to the collection lawsuit in violation of § 1692e, §
1692e (10), § 1692e (13), § 1692e (2)(A), § 1692e (9), § 1692f, § 1692d, MCLA 445.252(n),
MCLA 445.252(e), MCLA 445.252(b), MCLA 445.252(d), MCLA 445.252(f) and MCLA

445.252(q).
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1. PARTIES
4,

Defendant Cavalry SPV I, LLC (Cavalry) is a foreign corporation located in the City
of Valhalla, County of Westchester, State of New York and debt collector that purchases and
collects large portfolios of defaulted consumer receivables under 15 U.S.C. 1692a (6) and 15
U.S.C. 1692a(6)(f)(iii) and collects and services the debts through its subsidiaries such as
Defendant Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC. Defendant Cavalry files lawsuits to collect debts
through outside lawyers such as Defendant Weber & Olcese, P.L.C. in the 83 counties throughout

the State of Michigan. Please see Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2.

o.
Defendant Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (CPS) is a foreign corporation located in New
York and is a subsidiary of Defendant Cavalry and a debt collector of defaulted debts under 15
U.S.C. 1692a (6) and 15 U.S.C. 1692a(6)(f)(iii) and creates Robo-Notarized Affidavits to support
lawsuits to collect debts through outside lawyers such as Defendant Weber & Olcese, P.L.C. in

the 83 counties throughout the State of Michigan.” Please see Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2.

6.

Defendant Weber & Olcese, P.L.C. is a Michigan debt collector and law firm located in
the City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan that files lawsuits for Defendant Cavalry
throughout the 83 counties in the State of Michigan based on the Notarized Affidavits of Cavalry
and CPS that are “Robo-Notarized” to meet MCLA 600.2145 prima facie evidence requirements
of such indebtedness with these Affidavits to eliminate the “Burden” in a Plaintiff’s Burden of

Proof. Please see Exhibit 1 and 2 and also Exhibit 3 which is Dawn M Fannings’ Application

for Notary Public in Westchester County, State of New York.

7.
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Plaintiff Derek Rynberg is located in the City of Lansing, State of Michigan and considered
a Consumer under the FDCPA and RCPA.
8.
Plaintiff Walter L. Partridge is a resident of Pontiac, Oakland County, State of Michigan

and considered a Consumer under the FDCPA and RCPA

1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9.
Jurisdiction arises under 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692k (d) and 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1331, 1337. This court
has jurisdiction over this Complaint pursuant to the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d), 28 U.S.C. 8§
1331 and 28 U.S.C. § 1367. Venue in this judicial district is proper because the pertinent events
took place here. Supplemental jurisdiction for Plaintiff’s state law claims arise under 28 U.S.C. §

1367. Baltierra v. Orlans Associates PC, No. 15-cv-10008 (E.D. Mich. Oct. 7, 2015).

10.

The factual basis of the RCPA claim is the same as the factual basis of the FDCPA claim
and this district court has “supplemental jurisdiction over all other claims that are so related to the
claims in the action within such original jurisdiction that they form part of the same case or
controversy under Article 111 of the United States Constitution. 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). Lovelace v.
Stephens & Michaels Assocs., Inc., No. 07-10956, 2007 WL 3333019, at *2 (E.D. Mich. Nov. 9,
2007) (stating that FDCPA claims and RCPA claims are simply duplicates and “need not be
addressed separately”).

11.

Venue is appropriate in this federal district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) because a
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substantial part of the events giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred within this federal judicial
district, and the Defendants are subject to personal jurisdiction in the State of Michigan at the time
this action is commenced.

IV. STATUTORY STRUCTURE

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT (FDCPA)

12.

The FDCPA was passed to eliminate abusive debt collection practices by debt collectors,
to insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive debt collection practices are
not competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent State action to protect consumers
against debt collection abuse. 15 U.S.C. § 1692.

13.

Plaintiffs are consumers. Under the FDCPA, a “consumer” is any natural person

obligated or allegedly obligated to pay any debt. 15 U.S.C. §1692a (3).
14.

Under the FDCPA, “debt” means any obligation or alleged obligation of a consumer to
pay money arising out of a transaction in which the money, property, insurance, or services
which are the subject of the transaction are primarily for personal, family, or household
purposes. 15 U.S.C. § 1692a (5).

15.

Under the FDCPA, a “debt collector” is any person who uses any instrumentality of
interstate commerce or the mails in any business the principal purpose for which is the collection
of any debts, or who regularly collects or attempts to collect, directly or indirectly, debts owed or
due or asserted to be owed or due to another. 15 U.S.C. § 1692a (6). Defendants are debt

collectors.
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16.

The Defendants regularly attempt to collect consumer debts alleged to be due another and
are debt collectors as provided in 15 U.S.C. 1692a (6) and 15 U.S.C. 1692a(6)(f)(iii) as the bank
and credit card debts Defendants purchase are in default when obtained by all Defendants.
Bridge v. Ocwen Federal Bank, FSB, 681 F. 3d 355 - Court of Appeals, 6th Circuit 2012.

17.

The FDCPA is a strict liability statute, which provides for actual or statutory damages upon
the showing of one violation. Whether a debt collector’s actions are false, deceptive, or
misleading under § 1692(a)-g is based on whether the “least sophisticated consumer” would be
misled by a defendant’s actions. Harvey v. Great Seneca Fin. Corp., 453 F.3d 324, 329 (6th Cir.
2006).). This standard ensures “that the FDCPA protects all consumers, the gullible as well as the
shrewd.” Kistner v. Law Offices of Michael P. Margelefsky, LLC., 518 F.3d 433, 438 (6th Cir).

18.

Whether a debt collector's actions are false, deceptive, or misleading under 81692e is
based on whether the "least sophisticated consumer™ would be misled by defendant's actions.
Wallace v. Washington Mutual Bank, 683 F.3d. 323, 327 (6" Cir. 2012), Harvey v. Great Seneca
Fin. Corp., .

19.

Section 1692¢ provides: “A debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or
misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of any debt.” 15 U.S.C. §
1692e. To prohibit deceptive practices, the FDCPA, at 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, outlaws the use of
false, deceptive, and misleading collection practices and names a non-exhaustive list of certain
per se violations of false and deceptive collection conduct. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e (1) -(16). Among

the per se violations prohibited by that section are using any false representation or deceptive
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means to collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information concerning a consumer,
15 U.S.C. § 1692¢ (10).
20.
Section 1692e further provides:
A debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in

connection with the collection of any debt. Without limiting the general application of the
foregoing, the following conduct is a violation of this section:

(2)The false representation of—

(A) the character, amount, or legal status of any debt; or

(B) any services rendered or compensation which may be lawfully received by any debt collector
for the collection of a debt.

(3) The false representation or implication that any individual is an attorney or that any
communication is from an attorney.

(5) The threat to take any action that cannot legally be taken or that is not intended to be taken.

(9) The use or distribution of any written communication which simulates or is falsely
represented to be a document authorized, issued, or approved by any court, official, or agency of
the United States or any State, or which creates a false impression as to its source, authorization,
or approval.

(10) The use of any false representation or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect any
debt or to obtain information concerning a consumer.

(13) The false representation or implication that documents are legal process.

REGULATION OF MICHIGAN COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT (RCPA)

21.
The Regulation of Michigan Collection Protection Act (RCPA), MCL 445.251 et seq. is
an act to regulate the collection practices of certain persons; to provide for the powers and duties
of certain state agencies; and to provide penalties and civil fines.

22.
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“Claim” or “debt” means an obligation or alleged obligation for the payment of money or
thing of value arising out of an expressed or implied agreement or contract for a purchase made
primarily for personal, family, or household purposes.

23.

“Collection agency” means a person directly or indirectly engaged in soliciting a claim
for collection or collecting or attempting to collect a claim owed or due or asserted to be owed
or due another, or repossessing or attempting to repossess a thing of value owed or due or
asserted to be owed or due another person, arising out of an expressed or implied agreement.
Collection agency includes a person representing himself or herself as a collection or
repossession agency or a person performing the activities of a collection agency, on behalf of
another, which activities are regulated by Act No. 299 of the Public Acts of 1980, as amended,
being sections 339.101 to 339.2601 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. Collection agency
includes a person who furnishes or attempts to furnish a form or a written demand service
represented to be a collection or repossession technique, device, or system to be used to collect
or repossess claims, if the form contains the name of a person other than the creditor in a
manner indicating that a request or demand for payment is being made by a person other than
the creditor even though the form directs the debtor to make payment directly to the creditor
rather than to the other person whose name appears on the form. Collection agency includes a
person who uses a fictitious name or the name of another in the collection or repossession of
claims to convey to the debtor that a third person is collecting or repossessing or has been
employed to collect or repossess the claim.

24.
Defendants are regulated agencies under the RCPA. See Misleh v Timothy E. Baxter &

Associates, 786 F Supp. 2d 1330(E.D. Mich 2011; Newman v. Trott & Trott, PC, 889 F. Supp.
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2d 948 - Dist. Court, ED Michigan 2012; Baker v. Residential Funding Co., LLC, 886 F. Supp.
2d 591 - Dist. Court, ED Michigan 2012.
25.

“Communicate” means the conveying of information regarding a debt directly or
indirectly to a person through any medium.

26.

“Consumer” or “debtor” means a natural person obligated or allegedly obligated to pay a
debt.

27.

“Creditor” or “principal” means a person who offers or extends credit creating a debt or a
person to whom a debt is owed or due or asserted to be owed or due. Creditor or principal does
not include a person who receives an assignment or transfer or a debt solely for the purpose of
facilitating collection of the debt for the assignor or transferor. In those instances, the assignor or
transferor of the debt shall continue to be considered the creditor or the principal for purposes of
this act.

28.

“Person” means an individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, association, or
corporation. Defendants are regulated persons under 8 445.251(g)(xi). Defendants are violating
the following RCPA subsections:

445.252 Prohibited acts.

(a) Communicating with a debtor in a misleading or deceptive manner, such as using the
stationery of an attorney or credit bureau unless the regulated person is an attorney or is a credit
bureau and it is disclosed that it is the collection department of the credit bureau; and

(b) Using forms or instruments which simulate the appearance of judicial process; and

(d) Using forms that may otherwise induce the belief that they have judicial or official sanction.
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(e) Making an inaccurate, misleading, untrue, or deceptive statement or claim in a
communication to collect a debt or concealing or not revealing the purpose of a communication
when it is made in connection with collecting a debt; and

(F) Misrepresenting in a communication with a debtor 1 or more of the following:

(i) The legal status of a legal action being taken or threatened.

(i) The legal rights of the creditor or debtor.

(iii) That the nonpayment of a debt will result in the debtor's arrest or imprisonment, or the
seizure, garnishment, attachment, or sale of the debtor's property; and

(n) Using a harassing, oppressive, or abusive method to collect a debt...
(g) Failing to implement a procedure designed to prevent a violation by an employee.
29.

The Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, seeks Statutory
Damages, ACTUAL DAMAGES, attorney fees, costs, and all other relief, equitable or legal in
nature, as deemed appropriate by this Court in a Class Action context, pursuant to the FDCPA and
the RCPA and all other common law or statutory regimes. The Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and
all others similarly situated requests that he and the class members be awarded:

a. Their Actual Damages suffered by the class members like Plaintiffs who are subject to
the same the same collection/affidavit scheme or plan to burden debtors into not
responding to collection lawsuits,

b. Injunctive Relief stopping Defendants from continuing their plan and scheme through
letters and debt collection lawsuits as alleged here

c. Attorney fees and costs under the FDCPA and RCPA.

30.
The RCPA mirrors the requirements and remedies of the FDCPA with the same 6"

Circuit use of the “least sophisticated consumer” standard. McKeown v. Mary Jane M. Elliott
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P.C., No. 07-12016-BC, 2007 WL 4326825, at *5 (E.D.Mich. Dec. 10, 2007) (citing Hubbard v.
Nat'l Bond and Collection Assocs., Inc., 126 B.R. 422, 426 (D.Del.1991)) held that “8 445.252(e)
applies to Defendant, its analysis is similar to that under 8 1692e of the FDCPA, both of which
bar misleading and deceptive communications... In light of the similarity between 15 U.S.C. §
1692¢ 15 U.S.C. § 1692g and these causes of action, it appears appropriate to view Plaintiff’s
claims under the same “least sophisticated consumer” standard.

V.SIGNATURE OF DAWN M. FANNING LISTED WITH THE STATE OF NEW YORK

31.
Here at Exhibit 3 are the two signatures Ms. Dawn M. Fanning provided the State of
New York for both her application to become a notary and the affirming of another’s signature

and application:

PRINT ANY CHANGES IN INK IN THIS AREA

740 :};f/.f,//‘;’

-FANNING DAWN M R c/
25 CREST OR 7 eH
YORKTOWN HEIGHTS NY 10598

REGISTRATION
NUMBER' 01FA6091579

EFFECTIVE DATE  (04/28/2015

EXPIRATION DATE 04/28/2019 LISTDATE 01/01/2015
Oath of Office
State of New York, County of WESTCHESTER

| do solemnly swear (or affirm) that ! will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Naow York, and that | will falthfully discharge the duties of the

office of Notary Public for ghe State of New York ag best qf my# N
Applicant \ o
Signature X -

Swamn to befora me this N~ day of

TR e
Gy
Mo, 01BR6141 GGBW York

-

9 (County Clerk or Notary Public) Quaiiflad in Westchestor
Commirsinn Fynime Sok 97 nnen




2:17-cv-10535-LIM-APP

Doc#1 Filed 02/19/17 Pg120f27 PgID 12

I e i, B g et o S

o Pien (4 W3]

OATH OF OFFICE FOR OFFICE mr.(
USE ONLY DATE: ' q
[LAST NAME — FIRST NANE, MDD ]
Ennopez Jdessico
NYS HOME ADDRESS: (it your lagal rasidenco Is outside of
bl L e of NYS skip this section & complato the “NYS Business Namo & Address” halow
CITY: . A'D\" ZIP CODE: COUNTY:
3\_!\_\% Plawns NY Srenesier
NYS BUSINESS NAME: IU\OOU) \D&s’rc
NYS BUSINESS STREET ADDRESS:
cITY: 2IP CODE: COUNTY:
NY .t -
Qath of Office | da solemnly swear (or affirm) that | will support the Constilution of the United St
ates and the Constitution of tha
Stato of New Y State New Yark, and that | will faithfully discharge the dulles of the office of otary
County of York according to the best of my ability. o oriee of N Fublloforthe Stata of New

Applicant Signature X

A

Date _§ }2"1 \_Z_O\(O

Swom to be daynrglq a le
DAWN M. FANNING

ai )

Clark or Notary Putic)

DOS-0033-F-a (Rav. 07/14)

Public, State of New York

N?MFAM!WD
n

Wastchestar Counly
Commission Fxpirac anril 28. 2019

32.

Wotry Publc SGmp

The Dawn M. Fanning Signature above is signed on August 29, 2016 just 8 days before

her name was allegedly “signed” as a notary in Exhibit 1 for Defendants in an Affidavit of

Claim to support a case against Plaintiff Partridge:

6. 1centify under oath that 1o the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and swom 1o before me on 09/06/2016

[han

Legal Administrator

uI-WEBER AND OLCESE PC
18185200

Nm@dﬁ&, Sgp€ of WEW Yo

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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33.
The Dawn M. Fanning Application Signature above is signed on August 29, 2016 just
three months before her name was allegedly “signed” as a notary in Exhibit 2 for Defendants in

an Affidavit of Claim to support a case against Plaintiff Rynberg:

6. Iccrfify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above stalements arc true and comrect.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on 12/05/2016

é égé Adminigtrator \'Tfry Pubfic, Statc of New York

M- EBER ANO OLCESE FC
16780940

Dewn M Faoning
Noftary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commigsion Expires April 28, 2019

34.

As evidence of a wider scheme and plan to use false signatures in proving claims in
Defendant Cavalry and CPS cases, Ms. Fanning’s “signature” is appearing on Affidavit of
Claims that “notarize” signatures of Defendant Employees for other law firms such as Brook &
Scott, PLLC in South Carolina and Stillman Law Offices at Exhibit 4.

VI. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

35.

Plaintiffs adopt and restate the above pleadings especially regarding the foundation of the
scheme and plan to eliminate the rights of Michigan consumers and push through these State
Lawsuits to a Default Judgment based on MCL 600.2145.

36.
Defendants Cavalry and CPS purchase debt portfolios consisting of old and defaulted

debt with no credit cardholder agreements to sue Michigan residents using false information and
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computer template lawsuits with no meaningful involvement by the Weber attorneys signing
them under MCR 2.113(F).
37.

Defendant Calvary receives the purchased debt portfolios and Defendant CPS services
the debt and works up the legal paperwork and Affidavit of Claims to send to law firms across
the United States. In Michigan, the paperwork is then passed on to firms like Weber & Olcese,
PLC to sue Michigan consumers.

38.

As shown on the Affidavits, prior to sending the litigation file to Weber, each case

created by Defendant CPS is assigned a Michigan file number on the Affidavits identifying

Weber and Olcese, PLC as the recipient of the file:

M- EBER AND QLCESE FC
10730040
Exhibit 2 for Plaintiff Rynberg

iI-WEBER AND OLCESE PC
18185200

Exhibit 1 for Plaintiff Partridge

39.
Part of the plan and scheme is to provide Defendant Weber computer template pleadings
with few changes in each pleading other than the name of the debtor, amount of the debt and

location of the court. There is little, if any, attorney involvement or reasonable investigation in
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creating the lawsuit or even reading it by any of the attorneys signing the pleadings under MCR
2.113 and MCR 2.114.
40.

In the collection lawsuits filed by Defendant Weber, there are no attached signed credit
holder agreements attached to the collection lawsuits filed throughout Michigan. The complaint
template states:

7. ThatPlaintiff, through its assignor, and Defendant have consented to a sum as the credit balance
due from one another on the account.
41.

In Michigan, the Court Rules on Pleading require that the written agreement that the

action is based upon be attached to the pleading or state in the pleading that the written

agreement is in the possession of the Defendant:

Rule 2.113 Form of Pleadings and Other Papers
(F) Exhibits; Written Instruments.

(1) If a claim or defense is based on a written instrument, a copy of the instrument or
its pertinent parts must be attached to the pleading as an exhibit unless the instrument
is

(a) a matter of public record in the county in which the action is commenced and
its location in the record is stated in the pleading;

(b) in the possession of the adverse party and the pleading so states;
(c) inaccessible to the pleader and the pleading so states, giving the reason; or

(d) of a nature that attaching the instrument would be unnecessary or impractical
and the pleading so states, giving the reason.

42.

As the lawsuit was probably created in New York as part of the Cavalry Scheme to
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prepare the lawsuits for Defendant law firms like Defendant Weber, there are also no references
under 2.113(F)(1)(b) and (c) that the credit card agreement or written instrument is in the
possession of the defendant/consumer as required by court rule in the computer template lawsuits

here in Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2.

43.

The “Weber” lawsuits all state that:

1. That Plaintiff’s attorneys are debt collectors attempting to collect a debt and any information
obtained will be used for that pumose.

Defendant Weber Attorneys are communicating this information to debtors throughout
the state under 15 U.S.C. § 1692a (2) and MCL 445.251(c).

VIiI. NO MEANINGFUL INVOLVEMENT BY SIGNING ATTORNEY DEFENDANTS

44,

In violation of MCR 2.114 and MCR 2.113, the attorneys from Weber are signing these
Complaints with no meaningful involvement or any reading of the lawsuit the attorney is
vouching for.

45.

Given the violation of the pleading rules under MCR 2.113(F), Plaintiff is informed and
believes, and on that basis allege, that the Defendants have a policy and practice of filing
lawsuits that are computer-generated, mass-produced pleadings in violation of the pleading

requirements of the Michigan Court Rules — in the form of the Weber lawsuits at Exhibit 1and 2

that refer to Affidavits with false notary signatures to prove their case:

11, That a statement of the account and an affidavit verifying the account are attached to this

Complaint ?nd incorporated by reference (see attached Exhibits).
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. -- without any meaningful attorney review or involvement prior to the filing of the

collection lawsuits in violation of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e and 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692¢ (3).
46.

In violation of MCR 2.113(F) generally and MCR 2.113(F)(1)(b) and (c) specifically, if
the Defendant Weber attorneys had read or reviewed or had meaningful involvement in reading
or creating the “Weber” lawsuits, the Defendant attorneys would have known that there is no
cardholder agreement attached to the lawsuit and that there is no required paragraph in the
pleading stating that the written instrument is “in the possession of the adverse party.”

47.

Defendants’ scheme and plan to both, eliminate the rights of consumers’ ability to defend
themselves and convince a State Court that a Default is warranted on the merits of a false
complaint and affidavit is not complete or possible without the attorneys from Defendant Weber

signing off on the whole thing. Please see the lawsuit as filed against the Plaintiff attached as

an example of the use of this format and dependence on the Affidavits at Exhibit 1 and 2.

VIII. THE FALSE AFFIDAVITS AND MATERIAL DUE PROCESS

48.
The Defendant Affidavits created by Cavalry and CPS have all of the same information
except for the key facts specific to the debtor being sued. The form used seeks to create a

document with a court caption as though it has official or judicial sanction, by example:
(72K L.
AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM {ﬂ

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) S8
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE; Cavalry SPV [, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A.

s,
DEREK RYNBERG
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM 12 20t

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) SS
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A/Capital One Bank USA. N.A.

Vs,
WALTER L PARTRIDGE

AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM g

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)88
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of GE Retail Bank/HH Gregg ? 0 1 ﬁ C g 2 FI
tUT4(P: |
Vs,
DARYL POUND
JOHN J RIDGEWAY
49.

The fraudulent acts of Defendants consisted of the use of uniform and deceptive and
misleading affidavits and “Robo-Notarization” by Defendants under MCL 600.2145. Nothing is
more material to the least sophisticated consumer than how it’s reaction is shaped and changed
by deceptive and misleading pleadings and supporting affidavits.

50.

But for the material misrepresentations of Defendants through false affidavits and
violations of the Michigan Court rules, there is no proof that Cavalry has the right to sue the
Plaintiffs specifically or the Plaintiff class generally for these credit card debts. Michigan
consumers are forced to defend themselves against a debt collector suing them with false
information under MCL 600.2145.

51.

The material misrepresentation in the Affidavits help Defendants eliminate the “Burden”
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in their Burden of Proof in State Court by presenting false affidavits under MCLA 600.2145
requiring class members an increased burden of defending themselves in court against a collector
using false paperwork and attorney proof. The extra expense of an enormous investigation and
attorney assistance is necessary to defend against Defendants’ scheme and plan.

52.

Time is money and a Default Judgment is the goal of Defendants. The vast majority of
the Debt collection lawsuits Weber files go unanswered by Consumers and result in default
judgments given the ready-made but false Affidavit presented to the defaulting Court.

53.

Defendants file hundreds of these collection lawsuits in the State of Michigan. The use of
false verifications and robo-notaries eliminates the cost of verifying that Defendants truly own
the debt and that the debtor owes the amount in the Affidavit and Complaint. A “sworn” affidavit
takes the place of the necessary proof and paperwork and eliminates the associated cost of
proving the debt is owed to Defendants by class members and falsely forces the burden of proof
onto the debtor under 600.2145.

54.

There can be no greater and material misrepresentation upon the Michigan Consumer
here than the scheme and plan through these verified lawsuits and false Affidavits in an effort to
convince consumers and courts that they have no defense to a case and to persuade courts that
Defendants are legally entitled to Default Judgments under MCL 600.2145.

55.

In violation of the FDCPA and RCPA the material misrepresentations of the Defendants

go to the heart of the consumer’s due process right to defend themselves against a lawsuit. The

actions to falsify sworn notary verifications, to have Attorneys sign pleadings they have not read
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and/or that don’t follow the Michigan Court Rules on pleadings is purposeful misrepresentation
on the part of Defendants to eliminate the legal rights and defenses of debtors and to prop up
false Default Judgments in Michigan Courts.

56.

The “Cavalry/Weber” Affidavits and false signatures are crafted to deceive the class
members and Courts in the State of Michigan into believing Defendants have the right to sue and
collect upon debts either in trials or to support Default Judgments in violation of § 1692e, § 1692e
(10), § 1692e (2)(A), § 1692e (9), § 1692f, § 1692d, MCLA 445.252(n), MCLA 445.252(e),
MCLA 445.252(b), MCLA 445.252(d), MCLA 445.252(f), MCLA 445.252(q) and MCLA
445.252(a).

IX. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

57.

Plaintiff restates the above pleadings.

58.

Plaintiff brings this lawsuit as a class action. Plaintiffs tentatively define two classes
including all persons in the State of Michigan who, during the one year (FDCPA) and six years
(RCPA) prior to the filing of this complaint were the victims of “Cavalry/Weber Affidavits”
created by Defendants Cavalry and CPS in violation of Federal and State law.

59.

The FDCPA Class consists of all persons with a Michigan address that are subject to the
Defendants’ collection lawsuits in violation of § 1692e, § 1692e (10), § 1692¢ (13), § 1692¢ (2)(A),
§ 1692e (9), § 1692f and § 1692d.

60.

The RCPA Class consists of all persons with a Michigan address that have received
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Defendant collection lawsuits in violation of MCLA 445.252(n), MCLA 445.252(e), MCLA
445.252(b), MCLA 445.252(d), MCLA 445.252(a), MCLA 445.252(f) and MCLA 445.252(q).
61.

There are questions of law and fact common to each class, which common issues
predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The principal and common
issue is whether Defendants’ conduct in connection with the collection of a debt violates the
FDCPA and RCPA.

62.

There are no individual questions here. All Michigan class members receive the same or
similar computer template collection lawsuits supported by Robo- Notarized Affidavits with a lack
of meaningful attorney involvement and false robo notary signings that are filed in violation of the
FDCPA and RCPA.

63.

Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class. They are committed
to vigorously litigating this matter. Plaintiff Partridge and Plaintiff Rynberg are greatly annoyed
at being the victim of Defendants’ illegal practices and wish to see that the wrong is remedied. To
that end, they have retained counsel experienced in litigating consumer advocacy and class claims
like this one. Neither Plaintiff nor their counsel has any interests which might cause them to not
vigorously pursue this claim.

64.
Plaintiff claims are typical of the claims of the classes, which all arise from the same

operative facts and are based on the same legal theories out of Exhibits 1, 2 and 3.

65.

A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this
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controversy. Most of the consumers who are subject to this practice and policy of Defendant
undoubtedly have no knowledge that their rights are being violated by illegal collection
practices. The interest of class members in individually controlling the prosecution of separate
claims against Defendants is small because the maximum damages in an individual action are
$1,000. Management of this class claim is likely to present significantly fewer difficulties than
those presented in many class claims, e.qg, for securities fraud.
66.
Certification of each class under Rule 23(a) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure is appropriate because:
@ The questions of law and fact common to the members of each class predominate
over any questions affecting an individual member: and
(b) A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the controversy.
67.

There are questions of law and fact common to the class members, which common
questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members. The
predominant questions are:

a. Whether defendants had a practice of using Robo-Notarized
Affidavits and computer template lawsuits with no real or
meaningful attorney involvement and in violation of MCR 2.113
and MCR 2.114 against Michigan residents in violation of the
FDCPA and RCPA.

b. Whether Defendants violating the FDCPA and RCPA using

false Affidavits and Notaries under MCL 600.2145.
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68.

Certification of each class under Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure also

is appropriate because Defendants have acted on grounds generally applicable to each class,

thereby making declaratory and injunctive relief appropriate with respect to each class as a whole.

69.

Plaintiffs request certification of a hybrid class action, combining the elements of FRCP

23(b)(3) for monetary damages and FRCP 23(b)(2) for equitable relief.

X. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

Class 1-Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
70.

Defendants have violated the FDCPA. Defendants’ violations of the FDCPA include, but

are not necessarily limited to, the following:

a.

Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. 1692e and 15 U.S.C. 1692e (10) by using false, deceptive
and misleading representations and means in connection with the collection or attempted
collection of a debt using the collection methods at Exhibit 1-2 above that are material to
due process and the response of the consumer who is being sued under MCL 600.2145
with false documentation and attorney signatures that, but for the material
misrepresentations, the Consumer would have a less burdensome or better defense to the

99 ¢

lawsuit including the Affirmative Defense of “lack of ownership” “no assignment or sale
of the debt” and other defenses the consumer believes she does not have because of the
false documents used by Defendants; and

Defendants collected on the debt and violated 15 U.S.C. 1692f by designing and furnishing

the “False Affidavits” at Exhibit 1- 2 knowing that such a format would be used to create

the false belief in the class member and Michigan Courts that a lawsuit was supported by
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a legally notarized Affidavit when in fact, such is not the case as stated above; and
Defendants collected on the debt and violated 15 U.S.C. 1692f (1) with no proof, chain of
title or transfer, authorization or card holder agreement to collect any amount, interest, fee
or any charges on the “False Affidavits” and “Weber/Cavalry Lawsuits” at Exhibit 1-2;
and

. The Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. §1692e(2)(A) in falsely representing that a collection
lawsuit is falsely supported by the “False Affidavit” as stated above; and

The Defendants Cavalry and CPS violated 15 U.S.C. §1692¢(9) and 15 U.S.C. 1692¢e(13),
by creating and verifying false Affidavits to have the Michigan consumer believe that the
Affidavits are legal process or certified by a Court by naming Plaintiffs and Defendants
that did not exist at the time the parties were named along with information in a lawsuit
and affidavit to create the false belief that the documents were properly notarized and/or
authorized by attorneys following the Michigan Court Rules to fool Michigan Consumers
into believing Defendants were authorized to sue them and they owned the debt that was

the basis of the lawsuit and Affidavit as stated above at Exhibits 1 and 2; and

Defendant collected on the debt and violated 15 U.S.C. 1692d by designing and furnishing

“False Affidavits” at Exhibit 1 and 2 and lawsuits (collection attempts) to abuse and harass

Michigan Consumers into paying a debt to Defendants based on that false proof in violation
of the Michigan Court Rules in pleadings under MCR 2.113 and MCR 2.114; and

Defendant Weber violated 15 U.S.C. 1692e, 15 U.S.C. 1692¢(10) and 15 U.S.C. 1692¢ (3)
by approving and verifying false collection lawsuits and false affidavits where there is no
meaningful involvement by the attorney other than signing something she has not read.

Please see examples of the lawsuits at Exhibit 1, 2 and 4 where the attorneys are relying

on false notaries and signing pleadings in violation of MCR 2.113 and MCR 2.114.
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Wherefore, Plaintiff seeks judgment against Defendants for:

a. Statutory and Actual damages for Plaintiff pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1692k(a)(2)(A) and (B);
and

b. Statutory damages for the members of the FDCPA Class, pro rata, in the amount of the
lesser of $500,000.00 or one percent centum of the net worth of Defendants pursuant to 15
U.S.C. 1692k(a)(2)(B); and

c. Costs and reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1692k(a)(3); and

d. Actual Damages in the form of the required elevated responses, stress and out of pocket
costs of having to respond to a false debt collection lawsuit under MCL 600.2145 (Exhibit
1 and 2); and

e.  Such further relief as the court deems just and proper.
Class 2- RCPA CLASS ALLEGATIONS FOR ACTUAL DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF
71.
Defendants have violated the RCPA. Defendants’ violations of the RCPA include, but are
not necessarily limited to, the following:

a. Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(n) by using a harassing, oppressive, or abusive
method to collect a debt, using Exhibit 1-2 as mentioned above;

b. Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(e) Making an inaccurate, misleading, untrue, or
deceptive statement or claim in a communication to collect a debt or concealing or not
revealing the purpose of a communication when it is made in connection with collecting a
debt at (Exhibit 1-2); and

c. Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(f) Misrepresenting in a communication with a

debtor 1 or more of the following:
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(i) The legal status of a legal action being taken or threatened.
(i) The legal rights of the creditor or debtor at (Exhibit 1-2);
Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(q) by failing to implement a procedure designed to
prevent a violation by an employee by continuing to seek unauthorized advances not
authorized under the mortgage contract of Michigan Consumers for six years through
forms at Exhibit 1-2; and
Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(b) by creating documents designed to simulate the
appearance of judicial process or appearance at Exhibit 1-2.
Defendants violated MCLA 445.252(a) by communicating with debtors in a deceptive
manner at Exhibit 1-2
Wherefore, Plaintiff seeks judgment against Defendants for:
Statutory damages for Plaintiff in the amount of $50.00, trebled to $150.00
for a willful violation, pursuant to M.C.L. 445.257(2);
Equitable, declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to M.C.L. 445.257(1),
including but not limited to, a declaration that defendant’s debt collection practices violated
the RCPA, as well as an injunction, enjoining Defendant from using Exhibit 1-2 which
violates Michigan law; and
Reasonable attorney’s fees and court cost pursuant to M.C.L. 445.257(2) with
judicial sanction.
Actual Damages in the form of the required elevated responses, stress and out of pocket
costs of having to respond to a false debt collection lawsuit under MCL 600.2145 (Exhibit

1-2);

XI. JURY TRIAL DEMAND
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Plaintiff demands a Trial by Jury on all issues.
Respectfully submitted,

February 19, 2017
s/Brian P. Parker
BRIAN P. PARKER (P48617)
Attorney for Plaintiff

/s/ Nicholas A. Reyna
NICHOLAS A. REYNA (P68328)
Co-Attorney for Plaintiff
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b QEP“_’Y‘?_‘XSCA? . T 1st copy - Defendant 3rd copy - Retum /',
{ STATE OF MICHIGAN ‘ CASE NO. -
+ JUDICIAL DISTRICT
50th D:i.st'.‘-‘::l.c':’l D?&EJ& CUIT SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT e ' GC -
COUNTY PROBATE : i Vi o4 beos
Court address Court telephone no.
70 N Saginaw St, Pontiac MI 48342 _ 248/758-3800
Plaintiffs name(s), address{es), and telephone no(s). Defendant's néme(s). address(es), and telephone no(s).
Cavalry SPV I, LLC, as assignee of v WALTER L PARTRIDGE i
HSBC.Bank Neva ‘ 161 ILLINOIS AVE
da, N.A./Capital One Bank USA, N.A. PONTIAC MI 48341

c/o Weber & Olcese, P.L.C.
Our File No. 16-20343 # 6024

Plalntiffs attorney, bar no., address, and telephone no.
WEBER & OLCESE P.L.C
Michael J. Olcese (P46247) s
Geoffrey S Werber P67124 R
3250 W Big Beaver Rd Ste 124
Troy MI 48084
800/594-5809

[SUMMONS | NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANT: In the name of the people of the State of Michigan you are notified:
7 You are being sued.
. YOUHAVE 21 DAYS after receiving this summons to file a written answer with the court and serve a copy on the other party
ortake otherlawful action with the court(28 days ifyouwere served by mail oryou were served outside this state). (MCR2.111[C))
3. Ifyou do notanswer or take other action within the time allowed, judgment may be entered against you for the relief demanded
in the complaint.

Issued This summons expires
;o , e )

~[Coutt clerk__

e

2 g 2

S | R N 3

*This summons is invalid unless served on or before its expiration date. This document must be sealed by the seal of the court.

Instruction: Thefollowing is information thatis required to be in the caption of every complaintand s to be completed
by the plaintiff. Actual allegations and the claim for relief must be stated on additional complaint pages and attached to this form.
(] This is a business case in which all or part of the action includes a business or commercial dispute under MCL 600.8035.
Family DivisionCases

[ Thereis noother pending or resolved action within the jurisdiction ofthe family division of circuit court involving the family or family

members of the parties. )
(0 An action within the jurisdiction of the family division of the circuit court involving the family or family members of the parties has
beenpreviously filedin Court.
The action [Jremains Oisnolonger  pending. The docket number and the judge assigned to the action are: _
Docket no. Judge Bar no.
 General Civil Cases

*]There is no other pending or resolved civil action arising out of the same transaction or occurrence as alleged in the complaint.
[3A civil action between these parties or other parties arising out of the transaction or cccurrence alleged in the complaint has
been previously filed in : Court.
The action []remains [Oisnolonger  pending. The docket number and the judge assigned to the action are:

Docket no. Judge Bar no.

|VENUE |
Plaintiff(s) residence (include city, township, or village) Defendani(s) residence (include city, township, or village)
Valhalla, NY 10595-1340 PONTIAC MI 48341

Place where action arose or business conducted
PONTIAC MI 48341

December 7, 2016 e -
Date Signature of attorney/plaintiff Geoffrey S Werber P67124
. . . L . Sazan Bardha P65425
If you require special accommodations to use the court because of a disability or if you require a foreign language interpreter to help
you fully participate in court proceedings, please contact the court immediately to make arrangements.

sam as smieer OLIRERAANALNIC AWM FSAARAME AT QANIY A AAAIFMNIAAY REIATV A ANRL BEAR A AT REMNIY A AR KGRI A 4aNIFNIAILL et LAMM A ARDIAY

o somesmicmanan
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- .

16-20343 #6024

STATE OF MICHIGAN
IN THE §0TH DISTRICT COURT

Cavalry SPV |, LLC, as assignee of HSBC Bank Neva

da, N.A/Capital One Bank

Piaintiff,
VS.
WALTER L PARTRIDGE

Defendant.

Case No.

WEBER & OLCESE, P.L.C.
Geoffrey S Werber (P67124)
Sazan Bardha (P65425)
Attomeys for Plaintiff

3250 West Blg Beaver Road
Suite 124

Troy, Michigan 48084
800/694-5809

/

COMPLAINT

NOW COMES Plaintiff, Cavalry SPV |, LLC, as assignes of HSBC Bank Neva da, N.A./Capital Ore
Bank(“Plaintiff’), by and through its attorneys, Weber & Olcese, P.L.C., and for its Complaint against
Befendant(s), WALTER L PARTRIDGE ("Dsfendant’), states as follows:

JURISDICTION

1 That Piaintiff's attorneys are debt collectors attempting to collect a debt and any information

obtained will be used for that purpose.

2, That pursuant to MCR 2.113(C)(2), there Is no other pending or resolved civil action arising

out of the transactions or occurrences alleged in this Complaint.
3. That Plaintiff is doing business in the City of Valhalla, NY 10595-1340.
4. Thatupon information and belief, Defendant is domiciled in the Clty of PONTIAC M 48341.
§. Thatthe amount in controversy is $925.05.

COUNT |
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. .

ACCOUNT STATED
6. That Plaintiff incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through §.
7. ThatPiaintiff, throughits assignor, and Defendant have consented to a sum as the credit balance
due from one another on the account. _
8. That Defendant has received periodic billing statements from PlaintifPs assignor to which
Defendant has made payment(s) towards and/or not cbjected to.
9. ThatDefendant's payments and/or faliure to successfully question the state of the account within
a reasonable amount of time constitutes an admission of correctness.
10. That Defendant has been given all set-offs, credits and/or allowances on the account and is
indebted to Plaintiff in the amount of $925.05(see attached Exhibits).
11.  That a statement of the account and an affidavit verifying the account are attached to this
Complaint and incorporated by reference (see attached Exhibits).
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that Judgment be entered in its favor and against Defendant In the
amount of $925.05.
Respectfully submitted,
WEBER & OLCESE, P.L.C.

By.

Geoffrey S Werber (P87124)
- Sazan Bardha (P85425)
Altomeys for Plaintiff
3250 West Big Beaver Road
Suite 124
Troy, Michigan 48084
800/594-5809

Dated: December 7, 2016
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HOljSEHOi.D BANK PLATINUM MASTERCARD
WALTERL PARTRIDGE @5

Poga2ef3
2012 Totals Yozr to Oato

Tolzileos cliargod i1 2012 $201.20

Total nterast chargdd in 2012 $1278
Intargst Changs Coleutation
Vo Anaus) Pereenisge Rato (APR) s the snaual nterast 3l on your acoant
Tyvo of Batzrce Annuz) Percentage Rote {APR) Balsnco Sutiject to Inlorost Rato Intarost Chargd
PURCHASES 00004 0.00% $0.00 $0.00
CASH ADVANCES 80001 2020% (V) $25.4 04
BALANCE
s 19.88% (v) $0.00 $0.00
vabarishle Raze
Cutoner Nows
Gy the simpichty 8nd convenienos of managing your sccount onfing, Envoll in papariass siatements end manags your account athousshoiibank.comireglster

11025541 19 0000003533  STMTOO O H 42S87KDIY




2:17-cv-10535-LIM-APP Doc # 1-1 Filed 02/19/17 Pg 13 of42 Pg ID 40

* HOU.SEHOL.D BANK PLATINUM MASTERCARD
WALTER L PARTRIDGE - Valued Cardmember Stnca 2011 @

Prsolof2
| [New - 3
m‘ Cresits : ‘& Payxmert Duo Bats Al 14,2012
L
Balane Trenstars . $0.00 Lato Paymont Waming: (fwa do hot reosive minkoum paymant By the
Cash Adwances + $0.00 mwmmmmumammmummmw
Past Duo Amount $0.00 ey ba (ncreasod to the Penaly APR of 22.89%.
e . .
s B — (LT mako orfy tha nivimum payment each
Crodi Lim® $760.00 perdod, you mmmm?uuwmmbweomdm
ot e
f youmskonoadélional | YouwRlpay ciha | Andyouwtlendup
wﬂwmmm ma.% durgss using this card and | balznca shown on | paytng an estinated tots!
mumgcm 32 each morth you pay.. tissmtemontin (ol
$Cash Uit Is @ partion ¢ Total Crodt Limt. bt
Qnly tho minimtum dYess s8¢
Payment
1f you would [ tnformation about erod aounseling sesvices eel)
1-868-835-2227.
Quastions? Peyment Addross: HSBC Card Saricsa, PO Box 41563, Cerol Stream, L
24-Hosr Autornatod Acoount tnformstion 1-800477-1024 601974135
Espafiol 1.803-203-4334 Billing tnquirtos: HSBC Card Servicas, PO Box 60034, Sainas, CA
Lost orStolsn Cand 1-800-368-2817 839120094
Cuttida USA Coilect 1:803-245-8280 Manzgo Your acesunt onfine at vww.hsuscheldbankoom
TODHeasing tmpatred 1.800-655-8392
tmpottasitiornation: i
A9 o reminder, youmzy pay your crodit cand bifl ontins or tirough our sutomated phona systom for no foa,
"Transactians ,
! PaymentsiRatumiCreis
TrsnsOato  PostBate  Description of Transacton or Credit Roforonoe Numbar Amount
o3oin2 030312  DEBIT CARD PAYMENT- THANK YOU 851559720839780173388W7 $100.00
o2 034/12  DEBIT CARD PAVMENT- THANK YOU G5155572074370RESWNGI76 $100.00
Tolal Peyment For This Period <$200.00
Piachaieadelils
TrenaOats  PostOalo  Bascrintionc! Transactien or Cradit Purchaso Typs Raference Number Antount
N2 Q228N2 NKFONEINC QPSCANTON Ml MT120800142000010047000 a2
030an2 030712 LIVYLE CAESARS 1004 00PONTIAC M) MT120870121000010084827 81050
oxTN2 030SN2  SUNOCOO759150700 PONTIAC M! MT1206601 1400001002926 $2500
antne osMy12 &MWWW SOUTHRIELD MT1207201140000101 46341 §50.34
Totzl Purcheses For This Perlod $163.88
o9
Trens Dzto  PestDalo  DescripSonof Foos ) Refarencs Rumber Amount
032012 02012  PERS ACCTPROT - ELITE 800-833-3534 10000005030320889772730 $690
Total Peos for This Period $8.90
Owach P yor 11RT4 19 00NN GTMTR O H 470618y 5 sbe fos topactest Exfaccsaticn
Actount Number: —_—09851
New Balanco $T03.75
Binimum Paymant Duo $2500
Paymont Duo Oats o4t42012
sendcash, mmmm7umpw9am
YOur,
payment Suo dats Lo ensuro Emely delivery.
10 AMOUNT
ENCLOSED
£4550920908518 HSBC CARD
:z?.TERI.PWNDGE POBOX 4158

CAROCL STREAM 11, 601974155

RLLINOIS AVE
PONTIAC M 48341 -1915
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WALTER L PARTRIDGE - Valusd Cardmember Since 2011

Paga24f2
aterest Chargod

Descsiption of Inferest Clgrgo
INTEREST CHARGE CN CASH ADVANCES
INTEREST CHARGE ON PURCHASES
INTEREST CHARGE ON BALANCE
TRANSFERS

Total Interest For This Poriod

2012 Tolats Vozrto Doty

Totaifocs charged in 2012 .53

Total fmizresi chargod n 2012 987
ntorestTharme Caltilstion
YourAnnus] Percentego Rato (APR) is tho eamual iterest /223 0o youy acooumd.
Type of Balaneo Annust Perventsge Rats (APR) Balanco Subject to tnterast Raly Interest Charge
PURCHASES 00001 0.00% $0.00 $0.00
CASH ADVANCES 80001 20.90% (v) $131.58 $2414
Wm 10.89% (v} $0.00 $000
v Varksdie Rete
Customer bows

Manage your acoount anytiy! Enred ln paperess ststamants & pay your s anfing, Secro roglsirstion st householdbani.conyvogistar.

11323534 19 OIUIN005D STMIR O M 4730 KDSY
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM
STATE OF NEW YORK )

)SS
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE; Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A/Capital One Bank USA, N.A.

vs.
WALTER L PARTRIDGE

L, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

). 1amemployed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™).  CPS performs collection sesvices for Cavalry SPV I, LLC (“Plaintiff™).
] am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. 1 am authorized to make this affidavit

for PlgintifF.

2. 1am femiliar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below, .

3. Inthe normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders, CPS

and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to ascurately
record any business ect, condition or event onlo the computer record maimtained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such occumence,

4. 1have access to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and PlaintifFas they relate to the Account, and | make this Affidavit
based ypon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following: .

a. Thatthe Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV 1, LLC on or about 11/16/2012 from Capital One Bank (USA), N.A.. Priarto
Cavalry SPV }, LLC's ovwnership of the account, the creditor was HSBC Bank Nevada, N.AJCapita) One Bank USA, N.A..

b, Thatthe Defendant, WALTER L PARTRIDGE, the account holder(s), opened an account on 12/07/2011, which account was
charged off on 10/31/2012 (the “Account™),

¢c. Thatas of 07/21/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $925.0S.

d. Thatthe Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.
S. Based ona review of the Department of Defense datsbase, the Defendant is not an active member of the United States Anmed Forces,
6. 1cenify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the ebove statements are true and corvect.

&WMNWWB: OIC.Me-ONUYIUSI

Legal Administrator

WLWEBER AND QLCESE T
18155200

< N

Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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Aoprowd,8CAD s, (" Sot%omy « Dafindant S §% o - oo
STATE OF RICHIGAN w .ﬁiﬁ
san pisericf TR SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT % CWERHCA
COUNTY PROBATE | \1"0'0
Court address ™.

124 W Michigan f.ve.

Lansing MI 48933

§17/483-4433

c/o Weber & olciese. P.L.C.
Our File No. 16{-28862 8 6024

PiaintiPs attomay, bar no., éddress, and telephens no.
WEBER & OLCESE P.L.C
Michael J. Olcese (P46247)
Geoffrey 8
3250 W Big

Werher P67124
r Rd Ste 124
Troy NX 48084
800/594~5809

SUMMONS

. You are being sued
2. YOUHAVE21DA

ortakectherlawful

LANSING MI 48906-5116

{Plainiis nama(s), 65), and mmoim(s). . m@m m(g)a sddmm(es). and talsphona nos).
. 22‘3%&?’3.{: « 96 ashignee o v 924 N CAPITOL AVE UNIT 3

v-+

- 11 "BNISKY
in03 1181510

L

&

doz o 11w um

N TO THE DEFENDANT: In the name of the people of the State of Michigan you are notified:

after receiving this summons to filea writtenanawerwith the court and serve acopy an the ather party
onwiththecourt(28 daysifyouwereserved by mail orycuwere served outside this state). (MCrR2.111[T]

3. ifyoudo rotansweriortake other action within the time allowed, judgment may b entered against you for the relief demanded

).»n 50’1‘1

s served oriol

Oisis
Family DivisionCases
O Thereisnoatherpes

struction: Thofollowingls infarmatian thatis roquired (o boin the caption
iegations and the claim for relief must be stated an additional complaint pages and attached to this form.

e In which ail or part of the action includes a business or commercia) dispute under MCL 600.6035.

overy complaintand is to be completed

ojurisdiction of the famiy division ofthe circuitcourt involving the family or family membersof the parties has
‘ Coutt

Oisno longer

pending. The docket numbsr and the judge assigned to the action are;

Jugdge

Bar no,

: 8giyed civilaction ariaing out of the same transaction or occurrence as alleged inthe complaint.
@ piEs or other parties arising cut of the transaction or occumence alleged in the complaint has

Court

Tho fonger _ pending. The dockel number and e judge aseigned to the action aré:

Jidge

Bar no.

T TR AR T
cd i
Fizintife) residonce (mchids cily, wnahip, o vilago)

Valhalla, NY 10595-1340

LANSING MI 48906-5116

Oefendant(s) residence (mciudo Clly, Cownahip, of vilago)

Pilaco whgro action anse ¢r business eonducted
LANSING MI 48%06-5116

Ifyou require spacial modations to usathe courtbecause of a disabillly orif:

gazan

yourequirea foreigniangu

B oY

you fully participate In ¢ourt proceedings, please contact the court immediately to make arrangements.

MCOt (815) SUMMO

D
interpreterto help

S AND COMPLAINT  MCR 2.102(8){1 1), MCR 2.104, MCR 2.105, MCR 2.107, MCR 2.113(C}(2}{a), (b), MCR 9.208{)

HIRTIHEON TN ED O O me B e
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16-28862 €024

STATE OF MICHIGAN
i IN THE 84A DISTRICT COURT s W
= Y
CavattySVfl. LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A £ 5;
— 54
Y
Plaintiff, -U "gg
Case No. s
vs. R >
Hon R
. 0N
/
/
COMPLAINT

W COMES Plaintiff, Cavalry SPV |, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A. (“Plaintiff), byand through
» Weber & Glcese, P.L.C., and for its Complaint against Defendant(s), DEREK RYNBERG
, 8tates as follows:
Y R JURISDICTION .. . ...
That Plaintiffs attomeys are debt coliectors attempting to coflect a debt and any information

That pursuant to MCR 2.113(C)(2), there Is no other pending or resoived civil action arising
ons or occuvences alleged In this Complaint,

3.| That Plaintiff is doing business in the City of Valhalla, NY 10595-1340.

4,| Thatupaninformation and belief, Defendant s domiciied Inthe Gty of LANSING M1 48906-5116.
5.| Thatthe amountin controversy is $4,660.79.

COUNT |
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ACCOUNT STATED
6. |That Plaintiff incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through §.
7. ‘That Piintiff, through its assignor, and Defendant have cansented to a sum as the creditbalance
due from orje another on the account,

8. | That Defendant has received periodic billing statements from Piaintiffs assignor to which
Defendant has mads payment(s) towards and/or not objected to.

9. |That Defendant's payments and/or fallure to succassfully question the state of the account within
a reasonable amount of time constitutes an admission of correctness.

10| That Defendant has been given afl set-offs, credits and/or allowances on the account and is
indebted to| Plaintiff In the amount of $4,650.78(see attached Exhibits).

11] That a statement of the account and an affidavit verifying the account are attached to this
Complaint sind incorporated by reference (see attached Exhibits).

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that Judgment be entered In its faver and agalnst Defendant in the
amount of $4,850,79.

Respsctfully submitted,
WEBER & OLCESE, P.L.C.

By; z@g —
Geoffrey S Werber (P67124)

Sazan Bardha (P66426)
Sa o s p e 4 - AiOmMeys for.Plaintift
3250 West Big Beaver Road
Troy, n 48084
8001504 8805
Dated: Japuary 3, 2017
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*

SALE AND ASSIGNMENT dated March 31, 2016, is by Citibank, NA., 2

THIS OF
MMWMWWMhmﬁWWSMWuWI East
60tk Steect North, Sioux Falls, SD 37117 (the “Benk") to Cavalry SPV I, LLC, organized under

the laws of the Delawars, with its headquarters/prineipal place of business at Delaware

For meam@dmwwmmmmammmsmw

dated mm:&hmmmwnm(m"mm&emmmw

mmmmm.mmmmmmmnummwmwc
suoceasars and assigns, the Accounts described in Bxhibit 1 and the fing electronic file.

Tavalry 032916
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Payment Oue Dater
031872012

QUDOOOVI 34 A

GEREK RYNSERO
30 GLEN OARS DR APT
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AFRFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK
158

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE:; Cavalry SPV [, LLC, as assignze of Citibank, N.A.

Vs,
DEREK RYNBERG

1, Madaline Wood, being duly swom on cath, depase and say:

1. Iem rmplayed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS").  CPS perfonus collection szrvices for Cavalry 3PV [, LLC (“Plaintiff").
I am an authorized agen! for Plaintiff 2nd am a competent person mare than eighteen years of age. I am authorized to rrmkc this affidavit

for Plaintiff,

2. Yam familiar with the manner @md method by which CPS5 and Plintiff creale mul maintain business reconds pataining to the Account
a5 defined below,

3. Inthe normnl caurss of business, CPS and Plaint f maintain computerized nooownt records and documents fbor sccount holders, CPS
and Plalntiff maintain such records in the ondinary andt routine course of business and jt is their reguler business practice to accurately
record any business aot, condition or cvent ozto the compuler record maintsined for the ecoonats, with the entries made ot or very near the

time of any such occurrence.

4. Ihave acccss to ond bave seviewsd the applicablo roconds of CPS =d Plaintiff ns they relete to the Accoust, and I make this Affidavit
based upan information from that revicw.  Information contained in those reconds reflects the following:

2, That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV [, LLC on or about 03/31/2016 from Citibank, N.A.. Prior to Cavelry SPV I,
LLC's ownership of the account, the creditor was Citibank, NA..

b, Thit ths Defendont, DEREK RYNBERG, the account holder(s), opened nn nacount an 07/16/2010, which account was charged
offon 07/18/2012 (the “Account™).

¢, That 23 of | 172272016, tbe retords of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed & balanoe of $4,650.79,

d. Tha: the Dofendant is not an infust or iccompetent.

5. Based on @ reviow of the Depertment of Defense dutebase, the Defendant is not an active merebe of the United States Armad Fareeas.
6. Icertify ender onth that (o the best of my knowledga tha above stalements are true and comreet.

e f—'_-'_—._\n
'\

Subscribed Al sworn to before me on 12/05/2016

/

722010

3ol Administatar \"T:Try Pubfic, Statc of New York

UAWEESR AN QLo re
1878540

i

Dawn M Faoning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified o Westekester County
Commigsion Explires April 28, 2019
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Exhibit 1 0736 Purchase Date:3/31/2016
I}'}"
BA&E0.70
16~Jul-10
MIDBLENAME ~ (DERER
2 O EERE

CONSUME! l;éiw
uu“l'LALI_L BENG

LONSUNEREVATE

CONSUMER SSNOR S|

PTTOL AVE UNIT 2

AN

.Y.

SING

qasoa00nt
DOOOIXXER4E
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EXHIBIT #3
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-

2

PARNING DAWN M R}" / PRINT ANY CHANGES ININK IN THIS AREA

) aeCA .

25CREST DR

YORKTOWN HEIGHTS NY 10588 ._Zl// ( 7;[/ J / <
m?"“ 01FAS031579
EFFECTIVEDATE  04128/2015
EXPIRATIONCATE  04/28/2019 USTDATE  01/01/2015

Oath of Office

State of New Ycrk

Constitution of the
. .office of Notary Publlc

Applicant

Signature

Swermn (o befora mo this
? DANIEL BRITO
LN Y O Yok

(County Clerk or Notary Public) Quailed in W

n Fynime Sol 77 anen
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OATH OF OFFICE

—— A G el UGS S S

[TAST WAE
N Ge

v, .
AN
< —‘4' 'A‘A-\f;-

NYS HOME ADDRESS: (if your lsgo) rastdenco la outsido of NYS skip this section & complato the “NVS Business Nante & Address” helow
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Qath of Offico | do solamnly swear (or affirm) that | will support the Constitutian of the United States and the Constitutien of the
Stato of Naw/Y Stato New York, and that | wil fatthfully discharge the dulles of the office of Notary Publio for the State of New
County of York according to the bast of my ablity.
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' [L-1343

AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A/Capital One Bank USA, N.A.

Vs,
WALTER L PARTRIDGE

L, Madaline Wood, being duly swora on oath, depose and say:

1. lam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™).  CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV 1, LLC (“Plaintiff™).
1am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than cighteen years of age. | am authosized to make this affidavit

for Plaintif¥.

2. 1am familier with the manner and method by which CPS and Plzintiff create and maintain business records penaining to the Account
as defined below, .

3. Inthe normal course of busincss, CPS and PlaintifT maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary ard routine course of business and it is their regular business practice 10 accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the
time of any such occurrence,

4. 1haveaccess to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and | make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following: .

a Thatthe Account was purchased by Cavalyy SPV 1, LLC on or about 11/16/2012 from Capital One Bank (USA), N.A.. Priarto
Cavalry SPV 1, LLC's ownership of the account, the creditor was HSBC Bank Nevada, N.AJ/Capital One Bank USA, N.A..

b Thatthe Defendant, WALTER L PARTRIDGE, the account holde(s), opened an ascount on 1200772011, which aceount was
charged off on 10/31/2012 (the “Account™),

¢. Thatas of 07/21/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintif¥ show that the defendant owed a balance of £925.0S,
d. Thatthe Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

5. Based ona review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is ot an active member of the United States Armed Forces.
. 1 centify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the ebove statements are true and cosrect.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on 09/06/2016

Lega) Administrator

L-WEBER AKD QUCESE PG
1815520

Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission ExpiresApril 28, 2019




e B 2 0835 DA ' Dot ¥ 11 Filetf62110/17 Pg330f42 PgID 60U

AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
15%
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE: Cavalry SPV [, LLC, rs assignce of Citlhank, N.A.
Vi,
DEREK RYNBERG

I, Madaline Wood, being duly swom on oath, deposs and say:

}. Tum employed by Cavelry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPSY).  CP§ pecforms callection services for Cavalry SPV'I, LLC (“Plaintiff").
T 2m an sutherized agent for Plaintiff and am 5 competent pesson rmare than elghtesn years of age. 1am zuthorized to make this sfidavit
for Plainsiff, .

2. Tam fiuniliar with tho manner and method by which CPS sad PEET creals mnd wraintiin business reconds pertaining 10 the Accoum
05 defined below,

3. In the normal course of busicess, CPS and Plainti ff maintain compulcrized ecoount records end documents for sccount halders, CPS
and Plalntiff maintnin such records in the ordivary and rowling course of business und jt is their reguler businass practics to accurately
vecord any business ret, condition or cvent onto the compulzr record maintaiesd for thy eceonnts, with the crtries made m of very near the
time of any such ocowrrence,

4. Ihave pecens to and bave ceviewed the applicable reconds of CPS md Plaintiff oo they rclate fo the Account, and I make this Afidavit
based upon information from tbat review.  Informalion contaned Ia those recocds reflects the following:

2. That the Account was purebased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or shout 03/31/201 4 Gom Citibank, N.A.. Prior to Cavalry SPV 1,
LIC's ownesship of the acoount, the creditor was Citibank, NA..

b. That e Defendant, DEREK RYNBERG, the secount holdei(s), opencd nn necount an 07/16/2010, which account was charged
off on 07/18/2012 (tho “Account™).

¢. Thatas of 11/2272016, the rasords of CPS and Plaintiff show thal Uhe defendant owed & balance of §4,650.79.

d. That the Defendant is nol an infant or incompetent.
5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense dutabasa, the Defendant is not an sctive member of the United States Armed Forees,
6. Ieartify under cnth that to the best of my kmowledgo the above statements arc true nud correct.

Sﬁs’c'n_"ggd.rsmi‘nwdﬁ“ to before me ok 'I'ZIDSROIG\

Z Mfmf@

“lgee] Administrtor “Fwazyrubﬁc, Sintc of New York

U/ EEER AND QLGLIE 1C e T T il
fovadeo =

Dgwa M Fanning
Notary Public - Steta of New York
No, 01FA6091579
Qualified In Westehester County
Commission Explres April 28, 2019
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) S8
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A./Best Buy

1, Thomas Murphy, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

"1, Iam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™).  CPS performs collection services for Cavairy SPV 1, LLC (“Plaintiff").
1 am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. 1am authorized to make this affidavit
for Plaintiff.

2. 1am familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. Inthe normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the
time of any such occurrence.

4. 1have access to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following: )

2. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or about 05/06/2014 from Citibank, N.A.. Prior to Cavalry SPV ],
LLC*s ownership of the account, the creditor was Citibank, N.A./Best Buy.

b. That the Defendant, ! 5 3278, J¥ W, 3020, the account holder(s), opened an account on 05/08/2006, which account was
charged off on 10/14/2013 (the “Account”).

c. That as of 03/17/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $1,150.78.
d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

S. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not a member of the United States Armed Forces who
would be entitled to stay relief.

6. I certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and swomn to before

an /}

Notary Publ'an(ée(M York

(= /[

Legal Administrator

MISTILLMAN LAW CFFICES
19015648

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

'STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV L, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A.

| A R S ol

1, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. I1amemployed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™). CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV 1, LLC (“Plaintiff”).
1 am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. 1 am authorized to make this affidavit
for Plaintiff. -

2. [ am familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. In the normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such occurrence.

4, 1have access to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following: .

a. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV L, LLC on or about 03/31/2016 from Citibank, N.A.. Prior to Cavalry SPV I,
LLC*s ownership of the account, the creditor was Citibank, N.A..

b. That the Defendant, 7 .- 0)T.% J = 4. 87 N.-, the account holder(s), opened an account on 01/28/2010, which account was
charged off on 09/19/2013 (the “Account”).

c. That as of 11/22/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $1,553.44.
d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not an active member of the United States Armed Forces.
6. 1certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and sworn to-b€fore me on 12/05/2076

Administrator

M-STILLMAN LAW OFFICES
15807938

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV I, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A.

ve.
ey ASLLYT

_ 1, Madaline Wood, being!duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. 1am employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS"). CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV I, LLC (“Plaintiff").
1 am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. 1am authorized to make this affidavit
for Plaintiff. ‘

2. 1am familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. In the normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such cccurrence.

4. 1have access to and bave reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV ], LLC on or about 03/31/2016 from Citibank, N.A.. Prior to Cavalry SPV],
LLC's ownership of the account, the creditor was Citibank, N.A..

b. That the Defendant, AX'J ~p 7. 7, theaccount holder(s), opened an account on 03/07/2012, which account was charged
off on 03/07/2014 (the “Account™).

¢. Thatasof 11/2212016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $1,100.05.

d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not an active member of the United States Armed Forces.
6. 1certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on 12/05/2016

Legal Administrator

MSTILLMAN LAW OFFICES
18841575

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019

[ P I\h.n -, ~N
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)ss

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV |, LLC, as assignee of Citibank, N.A.

Vs,
. ’.»"f PN ';;.' r. :...

L, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. Tam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™). CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV LLLC (“Plaintiff),
Iam an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more thap eighteen years of age. Iam authorized to make this affidavit
for Plaintiff,

a. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or about 03/31/2016 from Citibank, N.A.. Priorio Cavalry SPV 1,
LLC*s ownership of the account, the creditor was Citibank, N.A..

b. That the Defendant —_ 7~ 4~ FZA4DER,  the account holder(s), opened an account on 09/13/2007, which account was
charged off on 01/14/2u14 (the “Accou.”,.

€. Thatasof ] 1/22/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $2,869.49,

d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent,

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not an active member of the United States Armed Forces.
6. Icertify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct,

Subscribed and swom to be: eon 12

N,

ninistrator ———— N ublig7/Btatsfof NAv York

M-STILLMAN LAW OFFICES
1583436

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
C ission Expires April 28, 201
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
| )SS

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV ], LLF, as assignee of Synchrony Bank/Care Credit

/
Vep JUN g o2
(]

VS.
It S B RCie

1, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say: .

1. 1am employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™).  CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV I, LLC (“Plaintiff).
1 am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. 1am authorized to make this affidavit

for Plaintiff.

2. ]am familiar with tt!ne manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account

as defined below., |

3. In the normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act| condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such occurrence.

4. Thave access to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a2 That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV L, LLC on or about 09/25/2014. The original creditor is Synchrony Bank/Care
Credit.

b. Thatthe Deféndant, © .Tuitz 2747, theaccount holder(s), opened an account on 04/26/2011, which account was charged
off on 08/10/2014 (the “Account™).

c. Thatasof 05/07&015, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $3,515.17.
d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

S. Basedona review; of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not a member of the United States Armed Forces who
would be entitled to stay relief.

6. 1certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and swomn to before me on 06/01/2015

Legal Administrator No:athm '

AT LAW OFFIGES \6 ’DMD%-O
: Dawn M Fanning '
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County i
Commission Expires Apri) 28, 2019

i
,
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MR AVTT OF CLATM g g
STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )

RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A. \ Orchard Bank

Vs,

/T AR VALL

duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. Tam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™).  CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV 1, LLC (“Plaintiff”).
I am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. I am authorized to make this affidavit

for Plaintiff.

2. 1am familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below. ‘

3. In the normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the
time of any such occurrence.

4. 1have access to and havf: reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or about 04/19/2012 from HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A.. Priorto
Cavalry SPV I, LLC's ownership of the account, the creditor was HSBC Bank Nevada, N.A. \ Orchard Bank.

b. That the Defendani, /T AUTRWT LY, the account holder(s), opened an account on 12/20/2007, which account was
charged off on 03/31/201. (tae “Account™).

c. That as of 04/21/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $961.08.
d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not an active member of the United States Armed Forces.
6. 1 centify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on 06/10/2016

N\
Adtinistrator Nom@Sje of New York

D-STLLMAN LAW OFFICES
7556480
i Diana Reynoso
_ Notary Public - State of New York
: No. 01RE6264527
: Qualified in Bronx County
: Commission Expires July 02, 2016

! Ha_ ~i20GoA
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV L, LLC, as assignee of Synchrony Bank/Care Credit

SEP 30 2015

Vs,

LT YT AYTTODTE
T

I, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. Iam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS”).  CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV I, LLC (“Plaintiff).
1 am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. I am authorized to make this affidavit

for Plaintiff.

2. Iam familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. Inthe normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such occurrence.

4. Thave access to and have reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a. That the Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or about 03/27/2015. The original creditor is Synchrony Bank/Care
Credit.

b. That the Defendant,” . ". _ %A 'l < -, the account holder(s), opened an account on 04/17/2012, which account was charged
off on 03/08/2015 (the “Account™).

c. That as of 09/15/2015, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $1,082.48.

d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent.

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not a member of the United States Armed Forces who
would be entitled to stay refief.

6. I certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

ibed ard swom to before me on 09/23/2015

Notary Public, State of New York

15- D519-D

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM

STATE OF NEW YORK )
: )SS

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV L, LLC, as assignee of Capital One, N.A/BEST BUY CO., INC.

vs.
WL s Ty

L, Thomas Murphy, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. Iam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS").  CPS performs collection services for Cavalry SPV I, LLC (“Plaintiff").
1am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than eighteen years of age. Iam authorized to make this affidavit

for Plaintiff. j

2. 1am familiar with the manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. Inthe normal course of business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the
time of any such occurrence.

|
4. Ihave access to and l!uave reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a. That the Accoufnt was purchased by Cavalry SPV I, LLC on or about 12/14/2012. The original creditor is Capital One,
N.A/BEST BUY CO,, INC..

b. That the Def&ant, T T2 U0, the account holder(s), opened an account on 05/1 7/2008, which account was charged
off on 11/30/2011 (the “Account”).

c. That as of 01/21/2016, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $4,286.96.
d. That the Defendant is not an infant or incompetent,

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense database, the Defendant is not a member of the United States Armed Forces who
would be entitled to stay relief,

6. Icertify under oath th;at to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

(_N)ﬁllmbﬁc,.sﬁe of New York
|Lb-DD251-D

Dawn M Fanning
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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AFFIDAVIT OF CLAIM
STATE OF NEW YORK )
)SS
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER )
RE: Cavalry SPV 1, LLC, as assignee of CAPITAL ONE BANK (USA), N-A. JAN 14 2015

1, Madaline Wood, being duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

1. Iam employed by Cavalry Portfolio Services, LLC (“CPS™). CPS performs collection services for Cavairy SPV L, LLC (“Plaintiff”).
I am an authorized agent for Plaintiff and am a competent person more than cighteen years of age. 1 am authorized to make this affidavit
for Plaintiff. '

2. 1am familiar with thé manner and method by which CPS and Plaintiff create and maintain business records pertaining to the Account
as defined below.

3. Inthe normal course éuf business, CPS and Plaintiff maintain computerized account records and documnents for account holders. CPS
and Plaintiff maintain such records in the ordinary and routine course of business and it is their regular business practice to accurately
record any business act, condition or event onto the computer record maintained for the accounts, with the entries made at or very near the

time of any such occurrezce.

|
4. 1have access to and liave reviewed the applicable records of CPS and Plaintiff as they relate to the Account, and I make this Affidavit
based upon information from that review. Information contained in those records reflects the following:

a. Thetthe Account was purchased by Cavalry SPV 1, LLC on or about 07/28/2014. The original creditor is CAPITAL ONE
BANK (USA), N.A..

b. That the Defendant, .~ E~ T}, T 7107,  the account holder(s), opened an account on 10/20/2006, which account was
charged off on 02/07/2012 (the “Account”).

c. Thatas of 12/17/2015, the records of CPS and Plaintiff show that the defendant owed a balance of $3,238.16.

d. That the Defendant is not & infant or incompetent.

5. Based on a review of the Department of Defense databasc, the Defendant is not a member of the United States Armed Forces who
would be entitled to stay relief. -

6. I certify under oath that to the best of my knowledge the above statements are true and correct.

Subscribed and swomn to before me on 01/08/2016

| LegaIAdnnn:suator ' Nof ic\State of New York
K oo \B-07704-0
Dawn M Fanning

Notary Public - State of New York
No. 01FA6091579
Qualified in Westchester County
Commission Expires April 28, 2019
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